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”e are continuing the mission and vision of our 5-year strategic

'y BT

plan. We have to make sure we execute in all regards: give prop-
er support to our customer-facing people, continue to seek really
great talent, constantly look at our infrastructure and efficiency,
and continue our commitment to every community we are in.
That will allow us to continue to deliver on our promise and

our m|35|or” Jeff Newgard,

President & CEO, Bank of Idaho
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Dear Shareholder,

In our letter to you last year at this time, we said we were optimistic about 2019. We had just opened a
new branch in Boise and hoped to add a mortgage originator and a trust officer. Well, we were a little
modest in our expectations for 2019! We did add the mortgage originator and a trust officer. But, in

addition we:

* Raised $15 million in new capital

* Opened two new branches in Boise and a loan production office in Nampa. The LPO will be a
full-service branch early in 2020.

e Converted our corporate structure from an S-Corporation to a C-Corporation

* Moved our administrative offices to a new building

*  Grew the loan portfolio 36.0% and our deposits 12.9%

e |Listed our stock (BOID) on the OTCQX market

e Grew Trust assets under management by 29%

The talent and effort required to accomplish this would tax an organization much larger than ours. We are
very proud and thankful for the efforts of the staff and board who made it happen. The planning, organi-
zation, execution and follow-up took hours of everyone’s time over and above their normal duties. Their

efforts are very much appreciated.

As we mentioned last year, the opportunity to enter a major market doesn’t come along often. We were
fortunate to hire three very capable teams who were well known and respected in the Boise market. They
attracted a substantial number of relationships that were looking for a well-run, mid-sized community
bank. The expansion of our business to the Treasure Valley contributed slightly over half of the increase
in our portfolio loans for the year and 37% of our deposit growth. The cost to enter a sizeable market like
Boise involves substantial startup expenses. As a result, 2019 earnings were negatively impacted, but the
decision to expand was made for the longer-term profitability of the Bank. The high growth and lower level

of profitability was a major consideration in the decision to add capital.

Pre-tax income dropped from $3.8 million to $2.2 million for the year. The change from an S-Corporation
to a C-Corporation resulted in a one-time, $1.2 million tax credit, which served to reduce the Bank’s taxes
for 2019 to a credit of $0.5 million resulting in net income of $2.7 million for 2019. Per share income (dilut-
ed) was $1.27 in 2019 compared to $2.05 in 2018.

On the plus side, the Bank’s performance exceeded our budget for the year. Balance sheet growth sur-
passed plan by 13% which resulted in a favorable budget variance for net interest income. Our mortgage
operations, which started out the year slowly, finished strong and exceeded plan. Expenses were just
slightly over budget, in part due to the higher than expected balance sheet growth. The Bank’s total cap-

ital ratio, at 15.86%, was well within policy and regulatory guidelines.



Asset quality remains within acceptable parameters. The Bank’s level of substandard loans dropped from
$8.4 million last year to $6.6 million at year end. Of the Bank's substandard loans, 84% are agriculture
credits. Farmers and ranchers continue to battle low prices and trade uncertainty. The good news is prices
appear to have bottomed and the trade outlook has brightened. The majority of substandard loans where
we have doubts about repayment in full (those classified as nonaccrual loans) are also ag loans. Those
loans dropped from 2.99% at the end of 2018 to 2.09% at year-end 2019. The allowance for loan and lease

losses as a percent of loans dropped from 1.95% to 1.53% over that same period.

The Idaho economy, with the exception of ag, was very healthy. Unemployment in our market areas were
all under 2.50% and low interest rates continue to help borrowers. Idaho has had the country’s top in-mi-
gration rate for three years in a row and the state’s job-growth rate has been strong at 3%. There are trade-
offs to these strong economic indicators that are being felt across the state. Finding qualified employees is
difficult for most employers. Finding affordable homes is a challenge in selected markets as supply hasn't

been able to keep up with demand. Builders should have a great year, however as they work to fill the

gap.

The outlook is for the strong economy to continue through 2020 but expansions do reach a point where
some reset occurs. Regardless, we will be working hard to grow our business in both southeastern Idaho
and the Treasure Valley. Thank you for your continued support. Please, when you see a Bank of Idaho

employee, tell them thanks. They earned it!

' %Kméﬁa&

Park Price, Chairman Jeff Newgard, President & CEO
Bank of Idaho Holding Company Bank of Idaho




”hen | go into the Bank of

ldaho, it seems like my bank. |
know everybody else feels the
same way too, but it feels like
it's my bank, because |'ve had
a relationship with them for all

those yea r’ ’
Barry Finlay,

Owner, Miracle Ear

”/e had my personal account with
them — it's been 20 years — and five-

and-a-half years with the business.
And they’ve been very helpful. One
of the things they let us know, is that
they're small-business friendly and
accommodating. And that’s the way

it is. It's really eas>”

Mickey Thiel,

Owner, San Michele




' "’eally love working for Bank of

|ldaho because they want to see

us succeed — not just survive —

but thrive. And | appreciate that. /|

Jeanna Nance,
Trust Officer, Bank of Idaho
Idaho Falls

"/hen you come here, you get that

extremely personal touch. And
we get to know you so we can
truly help you. We are relationship
builders. We have to know the
people that we work with on a

personal level, because we have to
know what helps them grow. |

Dustin Lopez,
Mortgage Sales Manager

Bank of Idaho, Boise Downtown

B




Bank of Idahojoins OTCQX Best Market Group
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2019 In Review
Corporate
Growth
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2019 has been a year of exceptional growth
and exciting opportunities for Bank of Idaho!
The opening of three new locations in South-
west Idaho, plus the addition of new Corpo-
rate and Wealth Management offices in Idaho
Falls, has dramatically increased our presence
and visibility in the state. Bank of Idaho Hold-
ing Co. also became the first Idaho-based
bank to join the OTCQX Best Market Group
and is now trading under the symbol BOID.
Below are some of the highlights from 2019’s

unprecedented growth.



Bank of Idaho
Holding Co.
Stock Now
Trading on
OTCQX Best
Market

In April of 2019 Bank of Idaho moved
our Corporate and Wealth Manage-
ment offices out of the Capital branch

to a brand new location inside The
Broadway in Idaho Falls. Corporate
and Wealth Management offices
now reside on the second floor of
this beautiful new development. The
greatly expanded space also includes
the William F. Rigby Community Room
which is available for community events

and meetings.

12

“Bank of Idaho is among nearly 100 community
banks traded on our OTCQX Market who share a
commitment to providing their investors with
transparent disclosure and efficient trading
to achieve their goals of accessing
liquidity,” said Jason Paltrowitz, EVP
Corporate Services at OTC Markets
Group. “OTCQX provides a premium
market for established banks with
strong financials and demonstrated
growth, offering a cost-effective,
efficient public market with the highest
levels of integrity and standards for
corporate governance. We are excited

to work with the team at Bank of Idaho
and to continue to find ways to create a

superior experience for their shareholders.”

- Laura Hamilton,
Vice President Corporate Services,
OTC Markets Group

Corporate
and Wealth
Management

Offices Move to
The Broadway




Bank of Idaho’s westward expansion officially began on Jan-
uary 7, when the first Boise location opened downtown in
the CenturyLink Building. Hundreds from the Treasure

Valley attended a grand opening celebration on May

13, punctuated by a ribbon cutting with the Boise

Bank of Idaho
opens FIrSt “If there is a textbook example of how to come
Boise Location into a market — particularly this market — where

people care about people, this is how you do it,”

in Downtown said Chamber President and CEO Bill Connors.

"We need good, solid community banks, and this is

Metro Chamber of Commerce.

certainly one of them.”

Adhering to the bank’s proven business model, the
downtown Boise branch specializes in consultative banking
that’s geared toward helping small businesses through long-

term, personal relationships.

The Boise team is loaded with talent familiar with the area, led by VP Tony Vahsholtz.

Bank of Idaho continued its expansion in the western part of the

state by opening its second Boise location at 6981 West

Overland Road, marking the bank’s ninth full-service lo-
cation. The branch opened for business on October
1, 2019. A grand opening is scheduled for June
2020.

True to the bank’s ideals, the Overland of- Bank Of Idaho

fice focuses on community banking and a
commitment to the advancement of small Expands to
businesses, regarded company-wide as

Overland Road

in Boise

the lifeblood of the state’s economy. The
bank focuses on providing tools and sup-
port through long-term, personal relation-

ships with clients.

The Overland team is made up of many familiar

faces from the area, led by VP Charlie Kouba.



Bank of Idaho continued their expansion in the
Treasure Valley with the announcement of a Loan
Production Office (LPO), in downtown Nampa’s
Historic Library building, at 101 11th Avenue,

Bank of
Idaho Opens

Suite 215. The new office offers a complete
slate of commercial lending options. In 2020

this office will become a full-service branch

Fi rst Na m pa and move to a newly remodeled office at 324

12th Avenue South.

Location

Pre-tax income dropped from $3.8 million to $2.2 changed from
million for the year. The change from an S-Corpora- s-corporation

tion to a C-Corporation resulted in a one-time, $1.2
million tax credit, which served to reduce the Bank’s to c-corporation
taxes for 2019 to a credit of $0.5 million resulting in

net income of $2.7 million for 2019. Per share income
(diluted) was $1.27 in 2019 compared to $2.05 in 2018.

Beginning in November, Bank of Idaho President and CEO, Jeff
Newgard kicked off a bi-weekly video podcast, Community Connec-

tions with Jeff Newgard!

The informal one-on-one interview format of this production
allows Mr. Newgard to indulge his fascination with authentic
conversations and long-term relationships, while sharing the

stories of local business owners and leaders. The guest ros- commu nity

ter has included mayors, a former major league ball star,

startup entrepreneurs, educators, nonprofit leaders, and connections
military veterans.
Podcast

Garnering more than 10,000 views and hundreds of online
comments and messages, this new strategy has proven to be

interesting, innovative and successful.

14




-
Rebecca Casp

it Community Connections with Jeff Newgard Podcast

(Gormmeuniiy

CONKECTIONS

Community Connections with Jeff Newgard is a podcast about
connecting with local business owners and leaders to hear their
stories. My slogan is “People bank with people.” As an expe-
rienced community leader with a demonstrated history in the
banking industry, I'm fascinated with authentic and real conversa-

tions and establishing long term relationships.
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College of Eastern Idaho/Swing for the Green Check Presentation

Y

2019 In Review
Community
Engagement
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At Bank of Idaho, our efforts are always cen-
tered on strengthening the communities we
serve. We actively participate in events and
activities that enhance our quality of life while
making Idaho a better place to live and work.
Employees are involved in many civic and ser-

vice organizations.

Whether it's providing assistance in branches
or connecting with neighbors at local events,
making a real difference is our goal. And as a
true community bank, our involvement entails
far more than writing checks. We encourage
all of our employees, and allow them the time
they need to engage in the organizations and
activities that make hometowns better. We be-
lieve that our branches are only as strong as

the communities they serve.



After only three years, this event has fast-become one

of our favorite events of the year. Staged at the Idaho

SWing for Falls Country Club, the tournament is host to a huge
the Green

cross-section of professional associates, business own-

ers, community leaders and garden variety golf lovers.

Charlty GOIf The real purpose of the event is to raise funds for ed-
Tournament ucation, and by that measure, once again the event

was a smashing success. Bank of Idaho was able to do-
nate $22,500, split between the College of Eastern Idaho

Foundation and the Idaho State University Foundation.

“Longtime, faithful community partners like the Bank of Idaho enable

us to bring world-class cultural and learning opportunities to East Museum

Idaho. We're the only small city in the world to book many of these
outstanding traveling exhibits, and the 100,000 people (including Of Idaho
50,000 Idahoans) that visit us every year get to enjoy them for a
fraction of what they would pay in New York or Seattle. The Bank of
Idaho helps make that possible.”

Last year's contribution and connections through Jeff helped us to
reach all the way to Fort Hall and the Shoshone Bannock tribe
for the first time in the Symphony’s history. Our patrons were
able to experience a live drum circle at the start of the second

Idaho Falls half of the concert. There were approximately 1,200 people

in attendance at that event.

Symphony

“Bank of Idaho's commitment to the community of Idaho
Falls resonates through their support of the Idaho Falls Sym-
phony by providing local musicians the opportunity to perform

the world’s great music for their neighbors, families, and friends.”

- Alekzandria Peugh,
Executive Director, Idaho Falls Symphony
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Co-Founded more than 15 years ago by Bank of Idaho Senior Branch
Banking Officer Jarod Phillips, the Turkey Box Fund provides Thanks-
giving Day dinners for families in need in the Idaho Falls area. In 2019,

working with other civic organizations, the Turkey Box Fund provided

1,072 complete Thanksgiving dinners, feeding an estimated 4,340
people. For its part, Bank of Idaho raised more than $32,000 and its

employees contributed countless volunteer hours to make it happen.

As arena sponsor, Bank of Idaho’s ties to the area’s agricul-
tural heritage are unmistakable. The event is billed as
Idaho's oldest rodeo, and is a week-long celebration

of Western culture.

| R War Bonnet
We take special care to recognize Native American
culture as part of that legacy. During the three days Round Up

of the rodeo, Mr. Newgard acts as liaison to per-

formers from the Shoshone-Bannock Tribes, who ROdeo

captivate crowds with traditional dancing, a horse-

back exhibition and a wild horse race competition.
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15 MILLION

IN NEW CAPITAL

36% 12.9%

LOAN GROWTH
PORTFOLIO IN

GROWTH DEPOSITS

4 NEW LOCATIONS

3 NEW LOCATIONS IN TREASURE VALLEY
PLUS NEW CORPORATE AND WEALTH MANAGEMENT OFFICE

STOCK
LISTED ON
OoTCQX
MARKET
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Bank of Idaho Holding Company and Subsidiary
Idaho Falls, Idaho

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bank of Idaho Holding
Company and Subsidiary (the Company), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive
income, changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

MManagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consclidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, |In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the approgriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com 1
B77 W, Main 5., Ste. B0O | Boise, ID B3702-5858 | T208.344.7150 | F 208.344.7435 | EQE



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows of the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The supplementary information on pages 48 through 56 is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
informtion directly to the underlying acounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole.

;M L7

Boise, Idaho
February 27, 2020



BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS
Cash
Interest bearing deposits in bank

Cash and cash equivalenis

Certificates of deposit

Securities

Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost

Morngage loans held for sale

Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of 84,336,622 and 54,082,720
at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively

Accrued interest receivable

Premises and equipment, net

Right of use assct operating leases

Right ofuse asset financmg leases

Other real estate owned

Other assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Deposits
Noninteresi-bearing, demand
Interest-bearing
NOW demand
Savings
Money market
Time certificates of deposit
Total deposits

Accrued interest payable
Accounts payable and acerued Babalities
Operating lease habilibies
Stock appreciation rights
Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Finance lease bomowings

Total liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS' BOUITY
Common stock, no par value, 4,000,000 shares authorized:
and 2,526,085 and 1,776,085 shares ssued and
outstanding at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively
Retained camings
Accurmulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Total stockholders' equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2019 2018
$ 7718283 7322475
33,692 17,586,340
7,751,975 24908815
288,600 288,600
84,960,004 88,614,713
842,800 385,900
15,017,358 3,780,015
279,065,768 205225643
1,447,588 1,547,351
6.288.421 5.610,114
2,336,841 :
3,012,744 :
2926992 3,139,605
1312.824 445,279
§ 405,251,915 333,946,035
$ 140929422 112,891,006
86,650,837 §3.453,562
75,849,176 71,668,968
18,025,562 13,880,322
13,913,734 15,095,991
335,368,731 206,998 849
17.536 13,523
2.472.486 2,922,900
2,354,551 :
221,457 219,672
11,040,000 X
3,078,354 :
354,553,115 300,154,944
26,688,868 12,505,200
23,443,058 22,173,633
566,874 (887,751)
50,698,800 33,791,091
§ 405251915 333,946,035




BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME
Leans. including fees
Securnties available forsale
Interest on inlerest bearmg deposits and certificates of deposit
Total interest and dividend income

INTEREST EXPENSE
NOW demand and savings
Money market
Time centificates of deposit
Federal Home Loan Bank advances and other bormowings
Total interest expense

NET INTEREST INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES
Provision for loan losses
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

NONINTEREST INCOME
Service charges on deposil accounts
Gain on sale of mortgage loans held forsale
Merchant card meome
Trust fee income
Cain on sale and call of securties
(iin on sale of other real estate owned
Other
Total noninterest mcome

See MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2019 2018
14,684,237 12,567,381
2,282,427 2,094 6ER
464,380 321,562
17,431,044 14.983,631
177.565 172624
20,033 13,622
069,478 51,843
75.158 2
342,234 238,091
17,088,810 14,745 540
774,300 925,000
16,314,510 13,820,540
572,462 583,864
3,142,064 2261411
215946 22,044
1,389.335 1,312,185
159,566 25,224
8,518 s
65,741 68,967
5363,632 4,273,695



BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018
NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries, wages and benefits $ 12,239.068 £ 9,472,897
Met occupancy expense 2,100,550 1,623,053
Advertising and business development 1031491 585,175
Accounting and consulting 353977 351,383
Bankcard and merchant services 385 (163)
Data processing 1,414,255 895,674
Legal 252176 149 339
Telephone, postage and courier 244,184 207,131
Other real estate owned expense 58412 38,649
Loss on sale of other real estate owned - 26,924
Office supplies 150368 98,519
FINC assessment 48,110 99,400
General and admmistrative 1.540.544 873,869
Total noninterest expense 19433520 14,421 848
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 5 2244622 3,672,387
Income tax cxpense (benefit) 5 (469.435)
NET INCOME § 2714057 5 3,672,387
Basic eamings per share 5 1.28 5 207
Diluted eamings per share 5 1.27 b 2,05

See MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements



BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018
Net Income Attributed to the Company $ 2,714,057 $ 3672387
Unrealzed gams (losses) on securities
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during period 1,818,267 (693 840)
Tax effect (223,708) .
Less: reclassification adjustment for gams mcluded
in gain on sale and call of securities (159,566) (25,224)
Tax effect 19,632 -
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 1,454,625 (719,064)
Comprehensive Income % 4,168,682 § 2953323

See Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements



BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

Accumulated
Total Common Stock Other
Stockholders' MNumber of Retained Comprehensive
Equity Shares Amount Eamings Income (Loss)
Balance, December 31, 2017 § 32347440 1,776,085 g 12505200 5 20010918 b (168,687)
Met incone 3672387 - - 3672387 -
Mher comprehensive income (loss), net (719.064) - - - (719,064)
Cash dividends {1,508.672) - - {1,508,672) -
Balance, December 31, 2018 $ 33,791,091 1,776,085 S 12505209 5 22,173,633 5 (BR7.751)
MNet income 2. 714,057 - - 2. 714,057 -
S-Comp to C-Corp OCI adjust (234,994) (234,994)
lssuance of common stock 14,176,226 50,000 14,176,226 - -
ASC 842 (leasing ) mplementation 122,426 - - 122,426 -
Other comprehensive mcome (loss ), net 1.454.625 - - - 1,454,625
Equity compensation expense 7433 - 7433 -
Cash dividends (1.332,064) - - (1,332,064) -
Balance, December 31, 2019 § 50,698,800 2,526,085 5 26688868 5 23443058 5 566,874

See MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7



BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

{used in) provided by operating activitics
Provision for loan losses
Market value adjustment to other real estate owned
MNet amoritzation for Premiums on securntics
Amorization of net defémed lpan fees
Depreciation of premises and equipment
Amortzation of ROU assets
MNet change in morgage loans held for sale
Gain on sale of monigage loans held for sale
Cain on sale of other real estate owned
Gam on sale and call of securitics
Stock appreciation rights expense
Equity compensation expense
Changes in assets and liabilities

Accrued mterest receivable

Other assels

Accrued interest pavable

Accounts payable and acerued liabilitics

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTTVITIES

Securities available for sale

Maturities, prepayments, and calls

Sales

Purchases
MNet change in FHLB stock
Proceeds frommaturitics of certificate of deposit in banks
Purchases of centificates of deposits in banks
Net (merease) decrease in loans
Purchases of premises and equipment
Proceeds fromsales of other real estate owned

NET CASH (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

See MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2019 2018
2,714,057 $ 3672387
774,300 925,000
57,080 .
409,972 735,772
(535312) (380,003)
594,690 530,381
637337 -
(8,095,279) 4280425
(3,142,064) (2.261.411)
(8.518) 26,924
(159.566) (25,224)
1,785 60,844
7.433 <
99,763 176,738
(1306,615) (228,414)
4,013 (2,799)
(327,988) §27.793
(8.274.912) 8,338,413
12,253,148 9,641,351
15,928,550 4311,790
(23,118,694) (20,362,508)
(456,900) {34.900)
288,600 288,600
(288,600) (288,600)
(74.079,113) (13,406,172)
(1,272,997) (512,943)
164,051 498,283
(70.581.955) (19.865,099)




BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS CONTINUED

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash paid for dividends
Proceeds from FHLB advances and other homowings
Principal payments on operating leases
Principal payments on financing leases
Net increase in deposits
Proceeds fromthe issuance ol common stock

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH FQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for
Interest
Income taxes

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of real estate in settlement of loans
Loans provided for sales of real estate owned

See MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2019 2018
$  (1332064) S (1509672
11,040,000 -
(468.062) i
(85,955) .
38,369,882 10,484,761
14,176,226 :
61,700,027 8,975,089
(17,156,840) (2,551,597
24908815 27460412
$  7,751975 $ 24908815
$ 338,221 $ 240890
$ 610311 $ -
$ - § 3033300
$ $ 126,778



BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Consolidated Financial Statement Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank of Idaho Holding Company and
its wholly-owned subsidiary, the Bank of Idaho (the Bank), collectively referred to as the Company. The Bank is
subject to comprehensive regulation, examination, and supervision by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
and the State of Idaho Department of Financial Institutions. All significant intercompany balances have been
eliminated in consolidation. The accounting and reporting policies of the Bank conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and general practice within the banking industry.

Description af Business

The Company has banking locations in Idaho Falls. Idaho: Ashton, Idaho; Pocatello, Idaho; St. Anthony, Idaho;
Istand Park, Idaho, Boise, ldaho: a Loan Production Office in Nampa, ldaho; and a mortgage origination office in
Twin Falls, Idaho. The Bank grants commercial, residential, and installment loans to customers located primarily
in southeastern Idaho and the Treasure Valley of ldaho.

Use of Estimates and Transfers of Financial Assets

In preparing the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepied in
the United States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of certain assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated balance sheets and certain revenues and
expenses for the period. Actual results could differ, either positively or negatively, from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near-term relate to the determination
of the allowance for loan losses and the valuation of real estate acquired in connection with foreclosures, or in
satisfaction of loans.

Management believes that the allowance for loan losses 15 adequate. While management uses currently available
information to recognize losses on loans and other real estate (when owned), future additions to the allowance may
be necessary based on changes in economic ¢onditions. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part
of their examination process, periodically review the Bank’s allowance for loan losses and other real estate owned.
Such agencies may require the Bank to recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgments of information
available to them at the time of their examination.

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales, when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control
over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Bank, (2) the
transferce obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or
exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Bank does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets
through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity at a fixed price.

{continued on next page) 10



BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

Cash on Hand and in Banks

Cash consists of vault cash, cash items in the process of collection and noninterest bearing deposits with financial
institutions. Interest bearing deposits include cash being held at the Federal Reserve. These deposits may exceed
the FDIC insured limits.

For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash Alows. cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances due
from banks and federal funds sold, as well as interest bearing deposits, all of which mature within 90 days.

Securities

The Bank classifies its securities in two categories, held to maturity or available for sale. Held to maturity securities
are those securities, which the Company has the ability and intent to hold until maturity. All other securities not
included in held to maturity are classified as available for sale.

Available for sale securities are recorded at fair value. Unrealized holding gains and losses on available for sale
securities are reported as a net amount in other comprehensive income. Held to maturity securities are recorded at
amortized cost, adjusted for the amortization or aceretion of premiums or discounts. Gains or losses on the sale of
securities available for sale are recorded on the trade date and are determined on the specific identification method.
Premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the period to maturity.

The Bank has adopted accounting guidance related to recognition and presentation of other-than-temporary
impairment. This accounting guidance amends the recognition guidance for other-than-temporary impairments of
debt securities and expands the financial statement disclosures for other-than-temporary impairment losses on debt
and equity securities. The recent guidance specifies that (a) if a company does not have the intent to sell a debt
security prior to recovery and (b) it is more likely than not that it will not have to sell the debt security prior to
recovery: the security would not be considered other-than-temporarily impaired unless there is a credit loss. When
an entity does not intend to sell the security, and it is more likely than not the entity will not have to sell the security
before recovery of its cost basis, it will recognize the credit component of an other-than-temporary impairment of
a debt security in carnings and the remaining portion in other comprehensive income (loss).

Declines in the fair value of individual available for sale and held to maturity securities below their cost that are
other-than-temporary result in write downs of the individual securities to their fair value. Related write-downs are
included in earmnings as realized losses. No such write-downs have occurred.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

The Bank holds stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank (FIILB). Federal Home Loan Bank stock is a required
investment for institutions that are members of the FHLB. The required investment in the common stock is based
on a predetermined formula and is carried at cost on the balance sheet. The stock can be sold back to the FHLB at
cost, but is restricted as to purchase and sale based on the level of business activity the Company is engaged in with
the FHLB, The Company had $842,800 and $385,900 in FHLB stock at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

(continued on next page) 11



BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

Fair Value Measurements

The Company determined the fair value of certain assets in accordance with the provisions of FASB Accounting
Standards Codification Topic Accounting Standards Codification 820, Fair Value Measurements, which provides a
framewaork for measuring fair value under generally accepted accounting principles.

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset in the principal or most advantageous
market for the asset in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. It is required
that valuation techniques maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The
Standard also establishes a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the valuation inputs into three broad levels.

Level | inputs consist of quoted prices in active markets for identical assets that the reporting entity has the ability
to access at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the related asset. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs reélated to the asset.

Loans

The Bank grants mortgage, commercial, and consumer loans to customers. A substantial portion of the loan
portfolio is represented by loans throughout southeastern Idaho. The ability of the Bank’s debtors to honor their
contracts is dependent upon the real estate and general economic conditions in this area.

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay off
generally are reported at therr outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for charge offs, the allowance for loan
losses, and any deferred fees or costs on originated loans. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance.
Loan origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs. are deferred and recognized as an adjustment of the
related loan yield using the interest method.

The accrual of interest on impaired loans is discontinued generally when the loan becomes 90 days delinquent or
when, in management's opinion, the borrower may be unable to meet payments as they become due. When interest
accrual is discontinued. and if the Bank does not feel they are adequately secured, all unpaid accrued interest is
reversed. Interest income is subsequently recognized only to the extent cash payments are received.

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual or charged off is reversed against
interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash basis or cost-recovery method until
qualifying for return to accrual, Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts
contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

Moarteage Loans Held for Sale

The Bank originates mortgage loans for sale to investors in the secondary market. Loans held for sale are carried at
the lower of aggregate cost or market as determined by outstanding commitments from investors. Gains and losses
resulting [rom the sale of loans are determined on the specific-identification method and reflect the extent that the
sale proceeds, based on the contractual commitment entered into by the Bank and the investor, exceed or are less
than the Bank's investment in the loans.

(continued on next page) 12



BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

Allowances for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan
losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the
uncollectability of a loan balance is probable. Subscquent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management’s
periodic review of the collectability of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan
portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying
collateral, and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that
are susceptible to significant revision as more mformation becomes available.

The allowance consists of allocated and general components. The allocated component relates to loans that are
classified as impaired. For those loans that are classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the
discounted cash flows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying
value of that loan, General component cover non-impaired loans and are based on historical loss rates for cach
portfolio segment, adjusted for the effects of qualitative or environmental factors that are likely to cause estimated
credit losses as of the evaluation date to differ from the portfolio segment’s historical loss experience. Qualitative
factors include consideration of the following: changes in lending policies and procedures; changes in economic
conditions, changes in the nature and volume of the portfolio; changes in the experience, ability and depth of lending
management and other relevant stalT; changes in the volume and severity of past due, nonaccrual and other adversely
graded loans; changes in the loan review system; changes in the value of the underlying collateral for collateral-
dependent loans: concentrations of credil and the effect of other external factors such as competition and legal and
regulatory requirements.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Bank will be
unable to collect the scheduled payments or principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the
loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral
value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience
insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management
determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into
consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay. the
reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal
and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan by loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either
the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s obtainable
market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the
Bank does not separately identify individual consumer and residential loans for impairment disclosures.

Premises and Equipment

Land and construction in process is carried at cost. Buildings, furniture and equipment, and leasehold improvements
are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization computed by the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives from 3 to 30 years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the terms of the related
leases or the estimated useful lives of the improvements, whichever is shorter. Normal costs of maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

(continued on next page) 13



BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

fncome Taxes

On January 1, 2019, the Company, with the consent of its stockholders, elected to change its organization type from
an S-Corporation to a C-Corporation. As an S-Corporation, in lieu of corporate income taxes. the stockholders'
separately account for their pro rata shares of the Company's items of income, deductions, losses, and credits. Asa
C-Corporation, the Company will pay income taxes directly. As a result of this change the Company recorded an
initial deferred tax asset totaling $921,541 and a reduction of $234.994 to accumulated other comprehensive
income. The offset to these entries was a tax expense benefit of 51.156.536.

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in the financial statements and consist of
taxes currently due plus deferred taxes related primarily to differences between the basis of property and
equipment, intangible assets, and accrued expenses for financial and income tax reporting. The deferred tax assets
and liabilities represent the future tax return consequences of those differences, which will either be taxable or
deductible when the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation
allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred
tax assets will not be realized.

The Company evaluates its tax positions that have been taken or are expected to be taken on income tax returns to
determine if an accrual is necessary for uncertain tax positions. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the
unrecognized tax benefit accrual was zero. The Company will recognize future accrued interest and penalties
related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense il incurred. The Company is no longer subject to
Federal and state tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2016,

Earnings Per Share (EFPS)

Basic EEPS represents income available to common stockholders divided by the weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS reflects additional common shares that would have
been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been issued.

Off-balance Sheet Financial Instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has entered into off-balance-sheet financial instruments consisting of
commitments to extend credit, performance standby letters of credit, and home equity lines-of-credit. Such financial
instruments are recorded in the consolidated financial statements when they become funded. These instruments
involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amounts recognized in the consolidated balance
sheets.

Other Real Estare Chwned

Other Real Estate Owned (OREO) acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure is held for sale and initially
recorded at fair value at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations
are periodically performed by management and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair value
less cost to sell. Revenue and expense from operations and changes in the valuation allowance are included in
income and expense from foreclosed assets.

(continued on next page) 14



BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

Long-lived Assets

The Bank evaluates the carrying value of long-lived assets based on current and anticipated discounted cash flows
and recognizes impairment when such cash flows will be less than the carrying value of the asset. There was no
impairment recorded as of December 31, 2019 or December 31, 2018,

Comprehensive Income

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains, and losses be included in net
income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available for sale
securities, are reported as separate components of the equity section of the consolidated balance sheet, such items,
along with net income are compaonents of comprehensive income.

Stock Compensation Plan

The Company implemented FASB ASC 718, Stock Compensation, which requires the recognition of compensation
cost in the financial statements of the Company. Compensation expense is recorded on a straight-line attribution
basis over the vesting period of the options. The compensation expense of options is calculated using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model.

Advertising

The Bank expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising expense was approximately $624,624
and $369,228 as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the accompanying financial
statements to maintain consistency between periods presented. The reclassifications had no impact on net income
or stockholders™ equity.

Recent Aceounting Guidance
Adoption of Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606

As of January 1, 2019, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic
606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which (i) creates a single framework for recognizing
revenue from contracts with customers that fall within its scope and (i) revises when it is appropriate to recognize
a gain (loss) from the transfer of nonfinancial assets, such as foreclosed assets. The majority of the Company’s
revenues come from interest income and other sources, including loans, leases, and securities that are outside the
scope of Topic 606. The Company’s services that fall within the scope of Topic 606 are presented within Non-
Interest Income and are recognized as revenue as the Company satisfies its obligation to the customer. Services
within the scope of Topic 606 include service charges on deposit accounts, merchant card income, trust fee income,
and the sale of other real estate owned. There was no significant impact to the Bank resulting from the adoption of
ASC 606.

(continued on next page) 1.5



BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

Adoption of Accounting Standards Codification Topic 842

Effective October 1, 2019, the Company adopted the new lease accounting guidance in Accounting Standards
Lipdate No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The Company elected to apply the guidance as of January 1, 2019, the
beginning of the adoption period. The comparative financial information and disclosures presented are in
accordance with the legacy standard, ASC 840. The standard requires the recognition of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for lease contracts with terms greater than 12 months. Operating lease costs are recognized in the
income statement as a single lease cost and finance lease costs are recognized in two components, interest expense
and amortization expense. The Company has ¢lected the package of practical expedients permitted in ASC Topic
842. Accordingly, the Company accounted for its existing leases as either finance or operating lease under the
new guidance, without reassessing (a) whether the contract contains a lease under ASC Topic 842, (b) whether
classification of the operating lease would be different in accordance with ASC Topic 842, or (¢) whether the
unamortized initial direct costs before transition adjustments would have met the definition of initial direct costs
in ASC Topic 842 at lease commencement.

As a resultl of the adoption of the new lease accounting guidance, the Company recognized on October 1, 2019, a
cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnings of $122,426, an operating lease liability of $2,822,613, an
operating lease right-of-use asset of $2,882 613, a financing lease borrowing of $3,164,309 and a financing lease
right of use asset of 53,164,309, The adoption of the new standard did not materially impact the Company's
Statements of Income or Statements of Cash Flows. See Note 6 for further disclosure of the Company's lease
contracts.

NOTE 2 - RESTRICTION ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

In conneection with the Company's facilitation of interest rate swap agreements between customers of the Bank
and Pacific Coast Bankers Bank, the Company must maintain an amount of non-interest bearing balances with
Pacific Coast Bankers Bank, the holder of the swap agreement. The total restricted cash held was approximately
$250,000 as of December 31, 2019 and 2018,

(continued on next page) 16



BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 3 - SECURITIES

Securities have been classified in the consolidated balance sheets according to management's intent. The amortized
cost and fair value of investment securities as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 are summarized as follows:

December 31, 2019
Available for Sale

Gross Ciross
Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Amortized Cost (iamns Losses Far Value

Collateralized mortgage obligations ~ § 72557851 § 1170829  § (336448) S 73392232
Mortgage backed securities 8,835,639 48,992 (39.687) 8,844,944
State and municipal securitics 2,795,564 - (72.736) 2722828

S 84180054 § 1219821 §  (448871) S 84,960,004

December 31, 2018
Available for Sale

Giross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Amortized Cost Gams Losses Fair Value

Collateralized mortgage obligations $ 67917080 § 175,618 5 (989317) § 67,103.381
Mortgage backed securities 12,423,033 16,732 (76,399) 12,363,366
State and municipal securities 9,162,351 83.424 (97.809) 9,147 966

S 89502464 § 275,774 § (1,163,525) 5 88614713

(continued on next page) 17



BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities at December 31, 2019, by contractual maturity, are shown
below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or
prepay obligations with or without prepayment penalties.

Available for Sale
Amortized Cost Fair Vale

Due in less than one vear 5 - 3 -
Due in one to five years - -
Due in five to ten years 2012211 1.953369
Due after ten years 783353 769459
2.795.564 2,722 828

Mortgage backed securities B.835,639 8,844 944
Collateralized mortgage obligations 72,557,851 73392232
#1.393.490 82237.176

S 84,189,054 $ 84,960,004

The following tables shows the Bank's investments' gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by investment
category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, These securities consist primarily of debt securities and are not considered other-
than-temporarily impaired because their impairment is due primarily to short-term fluctuation in interest rates.
These securities all relate to available for sale holdings.

There were 39 securities with unrealized losses at December 31, 2019, not recognized in income.

As of December 31, 2019 Less than 12 Months More than 12 Months Total

Unrealized LUnrealized Unrealized
Description of Securities Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Mongage backed sccunties 5 L5E0038 5 (25,097 § 2675499 3 (14.590) 8§ 4255537 § (39.,687)
Collateralized mongage obligations 16,844,547 { 140, 650) 13,976,756 {195,758) 30,821,303 (336,448)
State and Municipal securities 2722829 (T2.736) - - 2722829 (72.736)
TOTAL TEMPORARILY
IMPAIRED SECURITIES 5 247414 8§ (2383523 %3 OI6652255 0§ (210348) 5 37799669 5 (445471)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

There were 74 securities with unrealized losses at December 31, 2018, not recognized in income:

As of December 31, 2018 Less than 12 Months Muore than 12 Months Total

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Description of Securities Fair Vahie Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Morgape backed securities F 3m0231 S (5991 § 7733033 3§ (70408) 3 10743264 S (76,399)
Collateralined mongage obligations 7,588,038 (44,0:8) 45,152,681 (945,269) 52,741,619 {989.317)
State and Municipal securities 1,146.3%) {4,033) 4457048 (93,776) 5,603,438 197,809
TOTAL TEMPORARILY
IMPAIRED SECURITIES 5 11,745559 § (54,072 § 57342762 3 (1.109453) 5 o69.088321 S8 (1.163.525)

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, there were no securities that had an unrealized loss of more than 5% of the Bank's
amortized cost basis.

The Bank adheres to required recognition and presentation guidance for other-than-temporary impairment. The
guidance specifies that (a) if a company does not have the intent to sell a debt security prior to recovery and (b} it
is more likely than not that it will not have to sell the debt security prior to recovery; the sccurity would not be
considered other-than-temporarily impaired unless there is a credit loss. When an entity does not intend to sell the
security, and it is more likely than not, the entity will not have to sell the security before recovery of its cost basis,
it will recognize the credit component of an other-than-temporary impairment of a debt security in earnings and the
remaining portion in other comprehensive mcome.

Management has the ability and intent to hold the securities classified as held to maturity until they mature, at which
time the Company will receive full value for the securities. Furthermore, as of December 31, management also had
the ability and intent to hold the securities classified as available for sale for a period of time sufficient for a recovery
of cost. The unrealized losses are largely due to inereases in market interest rates over the yields available at the
time the underlying securities were purchased. The fair value is expected to recover as the bonds approach their
maturity date or re-pricing date or if market yields for such investments decline, Management does not believe any
of the securities are impaired due to reasons of credit quality. Accordingly, as of December 31, 2019, management
believes the impairments detailed in the table above are temporary and no impairment loss has been realized in the
Company's consolidated statements of income.

Proceeds from the sale of available-for-sale securities during the year ended December 31, 2019 were $15,928.550
resulting in gross realized gains of $218,178 and gross realized losses of $58,612. Proceeds from the sale of
available-for-sale securities during the year ended December 31, 2018 were $4,311.790 resulting in gross realized
gains of 831,859 and gross realized losses of $6.635.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

Investment securities were pledged as follows:

2019 2018
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
FHLB advances S 2,157,384 $ 2,181,541 5 3361103 5 3,336,734
Public and nonpublic deposits,
fed discount window and
other 22,288,858 22,708,145 13,729,511 13627328
$24,446,242 524,889,686 5 17.090614 S 16,964,062

NOTE 4 - LOANS

Loans consisted of the following as of December 31:

2019 2018

Commercial S 41,579,318 5 15285773
Commercial real estate 183,599,726 118,096,725
Agricultural loans 38,186,403 37,634,313
Consumer 18,419,856 16,503,469
Residential real estate 2,766,858 2403638

284,552,161 209923918
Less allowance for loan losses (4,336,622) (4,082,720)
Less deferred loan fees, net (1,149,771) (615,555)

S 279,065,768 S 205225,643
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

The interest rate components of loans are as follows at December 31:

FIXED AND VARIABLE RATE LOANS

2019 2018
Fixed rate loans S 179,934,337 b 141.259.020
Variable rate loans 104,617,824 68,6064 598

§ 284,552,161 $ 209923918

An analysis of the changes in the allowance for loan losses is as follows for the years ended December 31:

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

2019 2018
Balance, January | 5 4,082,720 % 3,676,746
Provision charged to expense 774,300 925,000
Recoveries 126,796 167.299
Loans charged off (647.194) (686,325)
Balance, December 31 $ 4,336,622 $ 4,082,720

(continued on next page)
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DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

The following tables present the activity in the allowance for loan losses and the recorded investment in loans and
impairment method by portfolio segment for the yvears ended Decanber 31:

Commercial Residential
December 31,2019 Commercial ~ Real Estate Agricultural Real Estate Consumer Tatal
Allowance for Credit Losses
Balance at beginning
of year S LI55437 5§ 1542876 % 1177373 12569 & 194465 5 4082720
Charge-olls (490,289) (65,182) - - (91,723) (647,194)
Recoveries 47,749 820 - - 78,227 126,796
Provisions 42719 892,793 (201,822) (2.420) 43,030 774,300
Balance at end of year 5 755616 8§ 2371307 % 975,551 10,049 § 223999 & 4336622
Individually ¢valuated for
imparment 5 - 5 5 - - 5 - 5 -
Collectively evaluated for
fmpairment 735,616 2,371,307 975,551 10, 149 223.999 4,336,622
Balance at end of year $ 755616 § 2371307 S8 975,551 10040 & 223990 § 4336622
Loans
Individually evaluated for
impairment $ 26636 § 636,113 8 5220018 - 8 - 5§ 6142767
Collectively evaluated for
impaiment 41,312,682 182943613 32,966,385 2,766,858 18,419,856 278,409 394
Balance at end of year $ 41,579318  S183.599.726  § 38,186,403 2766858 8§ 18419856 5 284552161
(continued on next page) 22



BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

Commircial Residential
December 31,2018 Commercial Real Estate Agricultural Real Estate Consumer Total
Allowance for Credit Losses
Balance at begmning
of vear § 776393 0§ 146613 5 L346898 5 10584 § 6,737 % 3676746
Charge-offs (139,882) - (445.579) - (100, 864) (6EG,325)
Becoveries 24,835 15,081 39,892 = 27491 167,294
Provisions 434.091 01,661 236,162 1.985 191,101 925,000
Balance at end of year S 1155437 § 542876 § LITI373 8§ 12560 8§ 194465 & 4082720
Individually evaluated for
impairment $ 3556 5 - 5 24084 5 - 5 - 5 379,778
Collectively evaluated for
impaiment 799,743 1,542,876 1,153,289 12,569 194,465 3,702,942
Balance atend of vear § 1,155437 § 1542876 § 1177373 § 12569 § 194465 5§ 4082720
Loans
Indwvidually evaluated for
inpairment S L143844 0§ 10HRO6G0 S S48 8 - 8 - 8§ 7721002
Collectively evaluated for
impairment 34,141,929 117,008 665 32,145.215 2.403,638 16,503,469 202,202,916

Balance at end of year § 35285773 S1I8.096725 3 37634313 8 2403638 % 16503469 % 209923918

Credit Quality Indicators

The Bank categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant information about the ability of borrowers to
service their debt including current financial information, historical payment experience, collateral adequacy, credit
documentation, public information, current economic trends, and other factors. The Bank analyzes loans
individually by classifying the loans as to credit risk. This analysis typically includes larger, non-homogeneous
loans such as commercial real estate, agricultural real estate, commercial and agricultural loans. This analysis is
performed on an ongoing basis as new information is obtained. The Bank uses the following definitions for risk
ratings:

Pass — Loans classified as pass represent loans that are evaluated and are performing under the stated terms. Pass

rated assets arc analyzed by the paying capacity, the current net worth, and the value of the loan collateral of the
obligor.
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Watch — Loans classified as watch possess potential weaknesses that require management attention, but de not yet
warrant adverse classification. While the status of a loan placed in this classification may not technically trigger a
classification as substandard or doubtful, it is considered a proactive way to identify potential issues and address
them before the situation deteriorates further and does result in a loss for the Bank.

Special Mention - Loans classified as special mention are protected by the current net worth, paying capacity of
the obligor, or by the collateral pledged. These loans have the potential to deteriorate to a substandard
rating. Although these loans are performing, adverse trends have developed in the borrower’s operations and/or
balance sheet. Collectability of the loan is not yet in jeopardy, but there is concern about the timely repayment.

Substandard - The loan may be inadequately protected by the current worth and/or paying capacity of the borrower
or the collateral pledged, if any. There are well-defined weaknesses that jeopardize the repayment of the
debt. Although loss may not be imminent, if the weaknesses are not corrected, there is a good possibility that the
Bank will sustain some loss. Terms, including amortization and maturity, are often medified to accommodate cash
flow inadequacies.

Based on the most recent analysis performed, the risk categories of loans by class of loans as of December 31, 2019
and 2018 were as follows:

Credit risk profile by internally assigned grade — Commercial, Commercial Real Estate and Agricultural

December 31, 2019 Pass Waitch Speel Mention Substandard Total
Commercial 8 38775327 % 1853519 b 540,777 5 409,695 3 41579318
Commereial Real Estate 175475381 6,718,185 750,047 656,113 183,599,726
Agrieuliural 24547336 3,656,368 4,141,015 5.541.684 38186403
3 239008044 $ 12228072 5 5431839 § 6607492 $ 263365447
December 31, 2018 Pass Watch Special Mention Substandard Total
Commercial 3 31419960 5 2674166 5 162450 5 1029197 35285773
Commercial Real Estate 109,860,024 6,499,501 115,527 1,621,673 18,096,725
Agricultural 23422 850 4465268 3994 582 5,751,613 37634313
§ 164,702,834 5 13638935 5 _ 4372550 §  B402483 3 191016811
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Credit risk profile by class based on payment activity — Residential and Consumer

Residential real estate and consumer loans are managed on a pool basis due to their homogeneous nature. Loans
that are delinquent 90 days or more or are not accruing interest are considered nonperforming. The following table
presents the recorded investments in residential real estate and consumer loans by class based on payment activity

as of December 31, 2019 and 2018:

December 31, 2019 Performing Nonperforming Total
Residential Real Estate § 2766858 g - § 2766858
Consumer 18,391 551 28,305 18419856
§ 21158409 3 28,305 $ 21186714
December 31, 2018 Performmg Nonperforming Total
Residential Real Estate £ 2403638 g - 5 2403638
Consumer 16,503 460 16.503 469
$ 18907.107 5 - 3 18907107

The following table summarizes the aging of the past due loans by loan class within the portfolio segments as of

December 31, 2019 and 2018;

Still Accruing
30-89 Days Over 90 Days Monaccrual

December 31, 2019 Past Due Past Due Balance

Commercial g 57229 b - 3 409,695
Commercial Real Estate 157,019 - 656,113
Agricultural 26,043 = 4,833,395
Residential Real Estate = = =
Consumer 57289 - 28,305
Total $ 297580 $ - $ 5927508
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December 31, 2018

Commercial
Commercial Real Estate
Agricultural

Resudential Real Estate
Consumer

Total

December 31, 2019
With no related allowance recorded

Commercial
Commercial Real Estate
Agricultural

Residential Real Estate
Consumer

With an allowance recorded

Commercial
Commercial Real Estate
Agricultural

Residential Real Estate
Consumer

(1) Represents the borrower's loan obligation, gross of any previously charged-off amounts.

Still Accrumg
30-89 Days Owver 90 Days MNonaccrual
Past Due Past Due Balance
b 55,590 $ - b 319,251
144,390 - 456,619
- 5489098
$ 199,980 % = $ 6264968
The following table summarizes individually impaired loans by class of loans as of December 31, 2019 and 2018:
Unpaid Average Interest
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investment  Balance (1)  Allowance  Investment Recognized
£ 266636 5 693303 3% - 5 532600 % -
656,113 656,113 - 537,812 23,838
5220018 5,270,128 - 6,464,208 28,495
- - - 14.400 -
$ 6142767 § 6619544 § - $ 7549026 § 52333
Unpaid Average Interest
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investment  Balance (1)  Allowance  Investment Recognized
5 - % - $ - 3 - % :
s -3 .3 - .8 :
26
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Unpaid Average Interest

Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
December 31, 2018 Investment  Balance (1)  Allowance  Investment Recognized

With no related allowance recorded

Commercial $ 440560 § 879754 § - 5 532606 % -
Commercial Real Estate 1,088,060 960,305 - 537812 23,838
Agricultural 4341927 4651517 - 6,464 208 28495
Residential Real Estate - - - - -
Consumer - - = 14,400 =
$ 5870547 $ 6491576 § - § 7549026 § 52333

Unpaid Average Interest

Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investment  Balance (1)  Allowance  Investment  Recognized

With an allowance recorded

Commercial T 703284 & 703284 § 355694 F 352428 0§ 21,09
Commercial Real Estate O & = - =
Agricultural 1,147,171 1,177,824 24,084 770,117 -
Residential Real Estate - 2 2 > 3
Consumer = o F _ 2

$ 1850455 & 1881108 & 379778 § 1122545 & 21006

(1) Represents the borrower's loan obligation, gross of any previously charged-off amounts.

There were no trouble debt restructurings (TDR) done in the year ended December 31, 2019 and one in 2018, The
loan was classified as a TDR due to payment extensions. At December 31, 2018 the unpaid balance of the loan was
$637.171. The pre-modification Allowance for this loan was $21,880 and the post-modification Allowance was $0.

During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, there were no loans modified in a troubled debt restructuring
that subsequently defaulted (i.e. 90 days or more past due following the modification) not including loans that were
fully paid down, charged-off or foreclosed upon by period end, As of December 31, 2019, the Company had no
commitments to lend any additional funds to any TDR debtors.

The total number of loans classified as troubled debt restructurings were 2 with total unpaid principal balances of
£655,880 and $697,384 as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Loans to officers, directors, and their affiliates are subject to regulatory limitations. The terms of these loans,
including imterest rates and collateral, are similar to those prevailing for comparable transactions and do not involve
more than a normal amount of credit risk. Such transactions were within the regulatory limitations. The activity
for these loans at December 31 is as follows:

LOANS TO OFFICERS, DIRECTORS AND AFFILIATES

2019 2018
Begmning of year b 2,070,392 5 1,523,749
Principal additions 7,323,633 8,620,536
Principal payments (5,360,311) (8,073,893)

§ 4,033,714 by 2,070,392

NOTE 5 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment consisted of the following at December 31:

Depreciable
Lives (in
years) 2019 2018
Land Indefmnite $ 730,893 3 730,893
Buildings 30 3,965,154 3,965,154
Leaschold improvements 6-10 3,782,453 3511,729
Furniture and equipment 3-10 5,227.250 4095 (49
Construction in progress N/A 99,209 290,364
13.804.959 12,593,189
Less accumulated depreciation (7.516,538) (6.983,075)

5 6,288.421 § 5610114

Depreciation expense as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $594,690 and 5530381, respectively.

(continued on next page) 28



BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 6 - LEASES

The Company leases certain office facilities and equipment for various terms under long-term, non-cancelable
operating lease and finance lease agreements. The leases expire at various dates through 2029 and provide for
renewal options ranging from one vear to five yvears. The Company included in the determination of the right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities any renewal options when the options are reasonably certain to be exercised. The
leases provide for increases in future minimum annual rental payments based on either pre-determined percentage
increases or defined increases in the Consumer Price Index, subject to certain minimum increases. Also, the
agreements generally require the Company to pay real estate taxes, insurance, and repairs,

The weighted-average discount rate is based on the discount rate implicit in the lease, or il the implicit rate is not
readily determinable from the lease, then the Company estimates an applicable incremental borrowing rate. The
incremental borrowing rate is estimated using the Company’s applicable borrowing rates and the contractual lease
Lerm.

The Company has elected the short-term lease exemption for all leases with a term of 12 months or less for both
existing and ongoing operating leases to not recognize the asset and liability for these leases. Lease payments for
short-term leases are recognized on straight-line basis.

The Company elected the practical expedient to not separate lease and non-lease components for office equipment
leases.

Total lease costs for the year ended December 31, 2019 were as follows: 2019
Operating lease cost § 360946
Short-term lease cost 39575
Fmance lease cost:
Interest expense 72,349
Amortization of right-of-use assets 151.566

Total lease expense under non-cancelable leases was $469. 674 for the year December 31, 2018,
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The following table summarizes the supplemental cash flow information for the year

ended December 31, 2019;

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabiltics
Operating cash flows from operating leases
Operating cash flows from finance leases
Financing cash flows from finance leases

Right-of-use assets oblained in exchange for kease liabilitics
Operating leases
Finance leases

The following summarizes the weighted-average remainmg lease lerm and
weight-average discount rate:

Weighted-average remaining lease term:
Operating leases
Finance leases

Weighted-average discount rate:
Opcrating leases
Finance leases

The future mmimum lease payments under noncancelable operating
and finance leases with tenms greater than one year are
listed below as of December 31, 2019:

2019

5 468,062

72,349
85,950

§ 2822613

3,164,309

2019

5.0 Years
14.4 Years

2.43%
3.25%

December 31, 2019

Operating Finance

2020 3 367,750 5 227233
2021 547,774 232926
2022 533,595 238,733
2023 312,347 244.654
2024 289,602 250.767
Thereafter 249 683 2,710,083
Total lease payments 2,500,753 3,904 396
Less mierest (146.202) (526,042)
Present value of lease liabilities $§ 2354551 § 3078354
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NOTE 7- OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED

Expenses applicable to foreclosed assets include the following as of December 31:

2019 2018
OREO Expenses:
Net loss (gain) on sales of real estate 5 (8,518) 5 26,524
Operating expenses 58.412 38,649
b 49,894 p 65,373

NOTE 8 - DEPOSITS
At December 31, 2019, the scheduled maturities of time certificates of deposit were as follows:

Maturitics

Years ending December 31,

2020 S 7789909
2021 2,158,463
2022 1,422 R0
2023 1.850.373
2024 288,137
2025 and thereafter 404,052

5 13913734

Included in time certificates of deposit are public funds of approximately $101,874 and $101,527 at December 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Deposits are established in the normal course of business by various officers and directors of the Bank. The terms
of these deposits, including interest rates, are similar to those prevailing for comparable transactions. These deposits
totaled $1,343,343 and $1,521,021 as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Time certificates of deposit include deposits of $250,000 or more totaling approximately $768,010 and $1,282,880
as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

NOTE 9 - BORROWINGS

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

The Bank has a borrowing agreement with FHLB to borrow up to 45% of total assets. FHLB advances are secured
under a blanket pledge collateral agreement whereby the Bank maintains unencumbered securities or real estate
secured loans with market values, which have been adjusted using a pledge requirement percentage based upon the
types of securities or loans pledged, equal to at least 100 percent of outstanding advances, and FHLB stock. Al
December 31, 2019, the book value of loans and securities pledged to the FHLB totaled $88,790,040 and
£2,110,816, respectively. At December 31, 2018, the book value of loans and securities pledged to the FHLB totaled
$68.817,973 and $3,277,117, respectively.  There was one ovemnight advance from the Federal Home Loan Bank
as of December 31, 2019 of 511,040,000 and no advances as of December 31, 2018,

Other Borrowings

The Bank has operating lines of credit with the following financial institutions at December 31:

Line of Credit Maturity Date
Pacific Coast Bankers Bank - Federal Funds Lmne S 6,000,000 on demand
Bankers' Bank of the West - Federal Funds Line 5,306,000 on demand

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, there were no outstanding balances under the Bank’s operating line agreements,
Interest varies based on the federal funds purchased rates.

NOTE 10 - CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK
The majority of the Bank’s loans, commitments, and standby letters of credit have been granted (o customers in the
Bank's market area, which is the southeastern and Treasure Valley areas of Tdaho. Substantially all such customers

are depositors of the Bank. The concentrations of credit by type of loan are set forth in MNote 4.

The distribution of commitments to extend credit approximates the distribution of loans outstanding. Outstanding
commitments and standby letters of credit were granted primarily to commercial borrowers.

The Bank places its cash with high credit quality institutions. The amount on deposit fluctuates, and at times

exceeds the insured limit by the U.S. Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, which potentially subjects the Bank
to credit risk.
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NOTE 11 - STOCK OPTIONS

The Company has approved and adopted the 2019 Equity Incentive Plan, which permits the grant of stock options
to its employees for up to 250,000 shares of common stock. Option awards are generally granted with an exercise
price equal to the market price of the Company’s stock at the date of grant; those options generally vest based on
five years of continuous service and have ten-vear contractual terms. Stock awards generally vest over five years.

Certain option and share awards provide for accelerated vesting if there is a change in control, as defined in the
plan.

Compensation cost charged to operations for the plan was $7,433 and $0 for the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. There was no income tax benefit recognized in the statements of income for stock-based
compensation arrangements for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using a Black Scholes option-pricing model.
The Company uses historical option exercise and termination data to estimate the expected term the options are
expected to be outstanding. The risk-free rate is based on the US. Treasury yicld curve in effect at the time of grant,
The expected divided yield is calculated using historical dividend amounts and the stock price at the option date.

2019 2018
Options granted 88413 -
Expected volatility 19.50% na
Expected dividends 0.00% na
Expected term - years 6.50 na
Risk-free interest rate 1.82% na
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A summary of the status of the Bank’s stock option plans as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 and changes during
those time periods are presented below:

2019 2018
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price
Qutstanding options, begmnning of year 30000 08 10.50 30000 S 10.50
Granted 88,413 20.00 s =
Exercised = - - -
Forfeited - - A .
Qutstanding options, end of vear 118413 § 17.59 30,000 8§ 10.50
Options exercisable, end of year 30,000 § 10.50 0000 S 10.50
Weighted-average:
Fair value of options granted during
I-he year & S=_t
Remaining contractual life in years 1.5 1.4

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2019;

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted- Weighted-

Average Weighted- Average Weighted-

Remaining Average  Agprepate Remaining Average Agpregate

Number Contractual Bercise Intrimsic MNumber Contractual Exercise Instrinsic

Exercise Price  Quistanding Life (in years) Price Value Exercisable Life {in years) Price Value
%l[l..’il] 30,000 04 § 1050 § 285000 30,000 04 § 1050 S 285,000
K20.00 88,413 9.9 20,00 ) - )
Total 118413 75 § 1759 § 285000 30,000 0.4 10.50 & 285000

As of December 31, 2019, there was $428,443, of total unrecognized compensation costs related to nonvested share-
based compensation arrangements granted under the plan. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted
average period of 9.9 years, The total fair value of shares vested was $0 during the years ended December 31, 2019
and 201K,
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Stock Appreciation Rights Plan

The Bank adopted a stock appreciation rights (SAR) plan. As part of the adoption of this plan, the Bank converted
55,705 stock options to SARs, which entitles the recipient to a cash payment equal to the number of SARs granted
multiplied by the increase in the fair market value of the underlying stock since the grant. The SARs are payable
upon the termination of employment with the Bank. 1In accordance with FASB ASC 718, the Bank recognizes
compensation expense and accrues a liability to match any appreciation of the stock’s market value. To determine
the market value of the stock, the Bank obtained annual market value appraisals as of December 31, 2019 and 2018,

Six employees terminated their employment with the Bank in 2019 and 540,387 in SARs was paid out. The Bank
had SAR expense of $47,727 in 2019. The Bank’s total liability under the SARs plan was $221,457 at December
31,2019, No units were awarded during the year ended December 31, 2019, At December 31, 2019, there were
53,321 units outstanding.

Six employees terminated their employment with the Bank in 2018 and $28,956 in SARs was paid out. The Bank
had SAR expense of $84,245 in 2018. The Bank's total liability under the SARs plan was 5219,672 at December
31, 2018. No units were awarded during the year ended December 31, 2018. At December 31, 2018, there were
66,111 units outstanding,.

NOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN AND INCENTIVE PROGRAM

The Bank has a 401(k) plan (the Plan) covering employees of the Bank who meet age and service requirements.
Plan participants are fully vested after six years of service. The Bank matches employee contributions up to four
percent of covered compensation. The Bank contributions to the Plan amounted 1o $291,423 and $221,582 for the
vears then ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. All contributions to the Plan as of December 31, 2019
and 2018 were contributed to the Employee Stock Ownership Plan discussed below.

Effective January 1, 1999, the Bank put in place an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (the KSOP) which contains
401(k) provisions. The KSOP allows employees 1o allocate a portion of their 401(k) salary defenment to purchasc
the Company's stock. All employees who were participants in the Bank's 401(k) plan as of January 1, 1999,
automatically became eligible to participate in the KSOP. In establishing the KSOP, eligible employees were given
a one-time rollover provision, which allowed employees to rollover money during 1999 from other 401(k)
investments to the KSOP to purchase the Company's stock. Subsequent to January 1, 1999, an employee can
become eligible to participate in the KSOP provided he/she has attained 21 years of age. The Company matches up
to a maximum of four percent of an employee’s salary deferment for participating employees. Employees qualify
and are [ully vested in the sale harbor match on the first day of the month following their hire date. The Bank’'s
expenses for this match were $291,423 and $221,582 for the years then ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

Effective May 10, 2005, the Bank initiated a Senior Officer Retirement Agreement under which the participating
officer would receive annual payments of 550,000 per year for ten years beginning the year following retirement.
On February 12, 2008, another Senior Officer Retirement Agreement was added. Under this plan the senior officer
receives annual payments of 590,000 a vear for seven years beginning three years after retirement, The senior officer
passed away in 2019 and the remaining funds were dispersed to the officer’s estate. The Bank had recorded a
liability for these two plans to reflect the present value of these obligations. The liability was %0 and 282,300 as
of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Compensation expense of $7,700 and $7,000 was recorded for the
Senior Officer Retirement Agreement [or the yvears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively,
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NOTE 13 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FASB ASC 820-10 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants. A fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability occurs in the principal market for the asset or liability or, in the absence of a
principal market, the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The price in the principal (or most
advantageous) market used to measure the fair value of the asset or liability shall not be adjusted for transaction
costs. An orderly transaction is a transaction that assumes exposure to the market for a period prior to the
measurement date (o allow for marketing activitics that ar¢ usual and customary for transactions involving such
assets and liabilities: it is not a forced transaction. Market participants are buyers and sellers in the principal market
that are (1) independent, (ii) knowledgeable, (iii) able 1o transact and (iv) willing to transact.

FASB ASC 820-10 requires the use of valuation techniques that are consistent with the market approach, the income
approach and/or the cost approach. The market approach uses prices and other relevant information generated by
market transactions involving identical or comparable assets and liabilities. The income approach uses valuation
techniques to convert future amounts, such as cash flows or carnings, to a single present amount on a discounted
basis. The cost approach is based on the amount that currently would be required to replace the service capacity of
an asset (replacement cost). Valuation techniques should be consistently applied. Inputs to valuation technigues
refer to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Inputs may be observable,
meaning those that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed
based on market data obtained from independent sources, or unobservable, meaning those that reflect the reporting
entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability
developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. In that regard, FASB ASC 820-10
establishes a fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs. The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 Inputs - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting
entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 Inputs - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly. These might include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for wdentical or similar assets or liabilitics in markets that are not active. inputs other than quoted
prices that are observable for the asset or liability (such as interest rates, volatilities, prepayment speeds, credit
risks, ete.) or inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by market data by correlation or other
means.

Level 3 Inputs - Unobservable inputs for determining the fair values of assets or liabilities that reflect an entity’s
own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the assets or liabilities.

(continued on next page) 36



BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

A description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value, as well as the general
classification of such instruments pursuant (o the valuation hierarchy, is set forth below. In general, fair value is
based upon quoted market prices, where available. If such quoted market prices are not available, fair value is based
upon internally developed models that primarily use, as inputs, observable market-based parameters. Valuation
adjustments may be made to ensure that financial instruments are recorded at fair value. These adjustments may
include amounts to reflect counterparty credit quality and the Company’s creditworthiness, among other things, as
well as unobservable parameters. Any such valuation adjustments are applied consistently over time. The
Company's valuation methodologies may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. While management believes the Company’s valuation
methodologies are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or
assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different estimate of fair
value at the reporting date. Furthermore, the reported fair value amounts have not been comprehensively revalued
since the presentation dates, and therefore, estimates of fair value after the balance sheet date may differ
significantly from the amounts presented herein.

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis include the following;
Securities

Fair values for securities, excluding FHLB stock, are based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes. The carrying
value of FHLB stock approximates fair value based on their respective redemption provisions.

The lollowing table summarizes financial assets and financial liabilitics measured at fair value on a recurring basis
as of December 3 1. segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure
fair value.

December 31, 2019 Lewel 1 Input Lewel 2 Input Lewel 3 Input Total Fair Value
Securitics available for sale 5 - % 84960004 % - 8 84.960,004
December 31, 2018 Level | Input Level 2 Input Level 3 Input Total Fair Vaklue
Securnitics available for sale b - % BEGIATIZ % - SR.614.713

Certain financial assets and Anancial liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis; that 1s, the
instruments are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjustments in certain
circumstances (for example, when there is evidence of impairment). Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value on a non-recurring basis include the following:
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Mortgage Loans Held For Sale

Mortgage loans held for sale are reported at fair value if, on an aggregate basis, the fair value of the loans is less
than cost. In determining whether the fair value of loans held for sale is less than cost when quoted market prices
are not available, the Company may consider outstanding investor commitments, discounted cash flow analyses
with market assumptions or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. Such loans are
classified within either Level 2 or Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, Where assumptions are made using significant
unobservable inputs, such loans held for sale are classified as Level 3. The Company classifies certain mortgage
loans as held for sale. During 2019 and 2018, the aggregate Fair value of the mortgage loans exceeded their cost,
Accordingly, no mortgage loans were marked-down and reported at fair value during 2019 or 2018.

Impaired Loans

Certain impaired loans are reported at the fair value of the underlying collateral if repayment is expected solely
from the collateral. Collateral values are estimated using Level 2 inputs based on observable market data or Level
3 inputs based on customized discounting criteria.

The fair value of impaired loans is estimated based on either the present value of expected future cash flows
discounted at the loans® effective interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral
if the loan is collateral dependent.

Other Real Estate Owned

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and initially recorded at fair value at the
date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed
by management and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell.

Collateral values are estimated using Level 2 inputs based on observable market data or Level 3 inputs based on
customized discounting criteria.

The following table summarizes financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring
basis as of December 31, segregated by the level ol the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to
measure fair value:

December 31, 2019 Level 1 Input Level 2 Input Level 3 Input Total Fair Value
Loans available for sale £ - 8 15017358 § - % 15017358
Impaired loans with specific allowance b - % - 8 - 5 -
Other real estate owned 5 - 5 - % 2881455 5% 2881455
December 31, 2018 Level 1 Input Level 2 Input Level 3 Input Total Fair Value

Loans available for sale £ - 5 11620677 % - % 11,620,677
Impaired loans with specific allowance b - B - 8 1.850455 § 1,850,455
C(ither real estate owned g - % - % 1015300 0§ 3015300
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The following table presents quantitative information about non-recurring Level 3 fair value measurements at
December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Range
Valuation Unobservable (Weighted
9 2018 Technique Input Average)
Collateral Dizcount from 0= 100%
lmpraired loans § 6142767 & 7341.224 valuation market value (20%)
Collateml] Discount from 0%-08%
Loans held for sale £ 15017358 5 3,780,015 valuation market vale (%)
Collateral Dizcount from (4= 100%
Foreclosed assets § 2926992 5 3.139.605 valuation market value (20%45)

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating fair value disclosures for
financial instruments:

Cash and due From banks - The carrying value approximates the fair values.
Interest bearing deposits in banks — The carrying value approximates the fair values.

Certificates of deposit — The fair values for loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses. using interest
rates currently being offered for certificates with similar terms and credit quality.

Securities available for sale — Fair values lor investment securities are based on quoted market prices or whose
value is determined using discounted cash flow methodologies.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock — Fair value is assumed to equal cost.

Loans, net — The fair values for leans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using interest rates
currently being offered for loans with similar terms and eredit guality.

Accrued interest receivable — The carrving value approximates the fair value.
Right of use assets — The carrying value approximates the fair value.

Deposits — The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (for example, interest and noninterest checking, passbook
savings, and certain types of money market accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at
the reporting date (that is, their carrying amounts), The carrying amounts of varable-rate, lixed-term money market
accounts and certificates of deposit approximate their fair values at the reporting date. Fair values for fixed-rate
certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies market interest rates on
comparable instruments to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits.
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Federal Home Loan Bank advances and other borrowings — Current market rates for debt with similar terms and
remaining maturities are used to estimate Fair value of existing debt. Fair value of long-term debt is based on quoted
market prices or dealer quotes for the identical liability when traded as an asset in an active market, If a quoted
market price is not available, an expected present value technique is used to estimate fair value.

Accrued interest payable — The carrying value approximates the fair value.
Finance lease borrowing — The carrying value approximates the fair value

Off-balance sheet instruments — Fair values for the Company's off-statement-of-financial-condition instruments
{unused lines of credit and letters of credit), which are based upon fees currently charged to enter into similar
agreements taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and counterparties' credit standing, are not
significant. Many of the Company’s off-balance sheet instruments, primarily loan commitments and standby letters
of credit, are expected to expire without being drawn upon; therefore, the commitment amounts do not necessarily
represent future cash requirements.

The estimated fair values, and related carrying amounts, of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

2019 2018
Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value

Financial Assets

Cash and due from banks § 7718283 § 7.718283 & 7322475 % 7322475

Interest bearing deposits in banks 33,692 33,692 17,586,340 17,586,340

Certificates of deposit 288,600 289,157 ZHE600 289,188

Secuntics available for sake B4.960,004 B4.260,004 EE 614,713 BR614.713

Federal Home Loan Bank stock B42.800 B42.800 385,900 385,900

Loans, net 279,065,768 279,003,829 205,225,643 205,691,683

Accrued interest receivable 1,447,588 1,447,588 1,547,351 1.547.351

Right ofuse assets 5,349,585 5,349,585 - -
Fimancial Liabilitics

Deposits 335368,731 335,191 401 206,998,844 278,641,645

FHLB advances and other borrowings 11,040,000 14,637,270 - -

Accrued interest payable 17,536 17,536 13,523 13,523

Finanee lease borrowing 3078354 3.078,354 - =
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NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Bank is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet
the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit in the form
of loans or through letters of credit. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest
rate risk in excess of the amount reécognized in the consolidated balance sheet. The contract amounts of those
instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Bank has in particular ¢lasses of financial instruments. Market risk
arises from changes in interest rates.

The Bank's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for
commitments to extend credit 15 represented by the contractual amount of those instruments, The Bank uses the
same credit policy in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.
A summary of the Bank's commitments and contingent liabilities at December 31 are as follows:

2019 2018
Unfunded commitments under lines of eredit $75.438,886 5 43827734
Lenters of credi 1,171,402 815,047

$76,610,288 5§ 44642781

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer provided there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and
may require payment of a fee. Since certain of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon,
the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank evaluates cach
customer's credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by
the Bank upon extension of credit, is based on management's credit evaluation of the borrower.

Letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a customer to a
third party. The guarantees extend for more than 30 days and expire through 2020, The credit risk involved in
issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in making loans to regular customers.

In connection with loans sold to investors, the Bank is subject to contingent recourse obligations on approximately
$54,015.295 and $26.462,354 as December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The Bank is required to repurchase
any mortgage loan sold that is in default in the first four months. The Bank had no loans repurchased in 2019 and
two during 2018,

In the normal course of its business, the Company becomes involved in litigation. In the opinion of management,
based upon discussion with legal counsel, liabilities, if any, arising from these proceedings would not have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position.

NOTE 15 - REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

The federal banking agencies published final rules (the “Basel 11l Capital Rules™) that revised their risk-based and
leverage capital requirements and their method for calculating risk-weighted assets to implement, in part,
agreements reached by the Basel Committee and certain provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act. The Basel 111 Capital
Rules apply to banking organizations, including the Bank.
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In connection with the effectiveness of Basel 111, most banks were required to decide whether to elect to opt-out of
the inclusion of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (“AOCI") in their Common Equity Tier 1 Capital. This
was a one-time election and generally irrevocable. If electing to opt-out, most AOCI items will be treated, for
regulatory capital purposes, in the same manner in which they were prior to Basel l11. Bank of 1daho has elected to
opt-out of the inclusion.

Among other things, the Basel 11T Capital Rules: (i) introduce a new capital measure entitled “Common Equity Tier
1" (“CET17); (i) specify that tier | capital consist of CET1 and additional financial instruments satisfying specified
requirements that permit inclusion in tier 1 capital; (iii) define CET1 narrowly by requiring that most deductions or
adjustments to regulatory capital measures be made to CET] and not to the other components of capital; and (iv)
expand the scope of the deductions or adjustments from capital as compared to the existing regulations.

A minimum leverage ratio (tier 1 capital as a percentage of total assets) of 4.0% is also required under the Basel 111
Capital Rules (even for highly rated institutions). The Basel 11T Capital Rules additionally require institutions Lo
retain a capital conservation buffer of 2.5% above these required minimum capital ratio levels. Banking
organizations that fail to maintain the minimum 2.5% capital conservation buffer could face restrictions on capital
distributions or discretionary bonus payments to executive officers.

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal and state banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional
discretionary actions by regulators that, ifundertaken, could have a direet material effect on the Bank's consolidated
statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank
must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assels, liabilities, and certain off-
balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are
also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum
amounts and ratios of Common Equity Tier | Capital (“CET1™), Tier | Capital, Total Capital and leverage ratio of
Tier 1 Capital, As of January 1, 2015, the requirements are;

4.5% based upon CET1

6.0% based upon tier | capital

#.0% based on total regulatory capital

Leverage ratio of Tier 1 Capital assets equal to 4%

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, management believes the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which
it is subject. As of December 31, 2019, the most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. There are no
conditions or events since the notification that management believes would have changed the Bank’s category.
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The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are presented in the following table:

December 31, 2019

Common Equity Tier | Ratio
Bank of ldaho

Tier ! Capital to Risk
Weighied Assets
Bank of Idaho

Total Risk Based Capital
to Risk Weighted Assets
Bank of Idaho

Tier 1 Capital to
Average Assels

Bank of ldaho

December 31, 2018

Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio
Bank of Idaho

Tier 1 Capital to Risk
Weighted Assets
Bank of ldaho

Total Risk Based Capital
1o Risk Weighted Assels
Bank of Idaho

Tier 1 Capital to
Average Assets
Bank of Idaho

(continued on next page)

Minimum To Be Well
Capitalized Under Prompt

Actual Minmmum Capital Requirement  Corrective Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratin Amount Ratio
5 49,790,000 14.61% § 15333300 4500 5 22,148,100 6.50%
S 49,790,000 [461% 5 20444400 600% § 27259200 8.00%:
§ 54,055,000 15.86% 8 27259200 BOMe 5 34,074,000 1000
5 49,790,000 1253% § 15.892,120 400 5 19865150 5.00%
Minmmum To Be Well
Capitalized Under Prompt
Actual Minimum Capital Requirement  Corrective Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amouni Ratio
£ 34,629,000 13.95% § 11,167,785 450% § 16131245 6.50%
S 34,629,000 13.95%  § 14,890,380 600% 5 19853840 BO0%
5 37,746,000 15.21%  § 19.8533.840 B00% 5 24817300 10.00%
£ 34,629,000 1037%  § 13,355,040 400% 5 16693800 5.00%
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NOTE 16 - INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes charged to income for the year ended December 31, 2019 consists of the
following:

2019

Current tax expense

Federal $ #7107

State 158,431
Deferred 1ax xxpense (benefit)

Federal (793,804)

State (281.239)
Income tax expense (benefit) $ (469435

The Company's cffective income tax rate is lower than what would be expected if the federal statutory rate were
applied to income from continuing operations primarily because of expenses deductible for financial reporting
purposes that are not deductible for tax purposes, tax-exempt income, and the dividends-received-deduction. The
Company recorded a federal income tax benefit of $951,541 and state tax benefit of $234,995 in 2019 related to the

change from an S-Corporation to a C-Corporation.

Deferred Income Tax Assets 2019
Allowance for loan losses $ 1,147.947
Allowance for unfimded commitment 108,878
Deferred lease costs T8342
Other real estate 47518
Deferred incentive payments 296922
Other 40,849

Total deferred mecome tax assets 1,720,456

Deferred Income Tax Liabilitics

Accumulated depreciation (527,637)
Deferred loan fees (99.888)
Accrual to cash conversion (252 883)
Net unrealized gam on available for sale securities (204.076)
Total deferred income tax liabilities (1,084 484)
Met deferred tax asset $ /35972
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A reconciliation of income taxes computed at the federal statutory rate of 21% is as follows:

2019
Federal income tax expense at statutory rates $ 438734
Effect of permanent differences 02927
Effect of state income taxes, net of federal benefit 155,440
Effect of conversion to C-corporation (1,156,536)
Income tax expense (benefit) $  (469435)

NOTE 17 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

A reconciliation of the income available to common stockholders and common stock share amounts used in the
calculation of basic and diluted EPS for the years then ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, follow:

2019 2013

Net meome (loss) available 1o common stockholders $ 2,714,057 § 3672387
Basic EPS:

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 2,121,290 1,776,085

Earnings (loss) per common share $ 1.28 & 2.07
Diluted EPS:

Weighted average number of common shares oulstanding 2,121,290 1,776,085

Common share equivalkenis - stock options 14,250 13,534

Weighted average number of common shares and common share cquivalents 2,135,540 1,789,619

Earnings (loss) per common share 1 L.27 % 2.05

Options outstanding of 118,413 shares of common stock at a weighted average price of §10.50 at the periods ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018 were included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because their exercise
price was below the average market price of the common stock during that period.
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NOTE 18 - REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

All the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers in the scope of ASC 606 is recognized within Noninterest
Income. Gains on sales of loans and gains from sales of securities are outside of the scope of ASC 606. Other
income includes $25,946 of interchange income which is within the scope of ASC 606, Service charges on deposit
accounts in the amount of 5572462, and Trust fee income of $1,389,335; the remaining balance of $74.260
represents other miscellaneous income, which are outside the scope of ASC 606,

A deseription of the Company’s revenue streams accounted for under Topic 606 follows:

Service Charges on Deposit Accounts - The Company earns fees from its deposit customers for transaction-based,
account maintenance, and overdraft services. Transaction-based fees, which include services such as ATM use fees,
stop payment charges, statement rendering, and ACH fees, are recognized at the time the transaction is executed as
that is the point in time the Company fulfills the customer’s request. Account maintenance fees, which refated
primarily to monthly maintenance, are eamned over the course of a month, representing the period over which the
Company satisfies the performance obligation. Overdrafl fees are recognized at the point in time that the overdraft
occurs, Service charges on deposits are withdrawn from the customer’s account balance.

Interchange Income - The Company earns interchange fees from debit cardholder transactions conducted through
the Visa payment network. Interchange fees from cardholder transactions represent a percentage of the underlying
transaction value and are recognized daily, concurrently with the transaction processing services provided to the
cardholder

Trust fee income - The Company earns account management fees from its contracts with trust and investment
management customers to manage assets for investment. These fees are primarily eamed over time as the Company
provides the contracted monthly or quarterly services and are generally assessed based on a tiered scale of the
market value of the assets under management (ALUM) at month-end. Other related services provided include probate
and the fees the Company earns, which are based on time and expense are recognized when the services are
rendered.

NOTE 19 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through February 27, 2020, which is the date the audited
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
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BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2019
Rank of Idaho

(in thousands) Bank of Idaho Holding Company  Eliminations  Consolidated
ASSETS
Cash 778 S 380§ (338) S 7,718
Interest bearing deposits in banks 34 - - 34
Certificates of deposit 289 - - 2849
Securitics avaittable for sale, at fair value 84,960 - - B4.960
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost 843 - 843
Mortgage loans held for sale 15,017 - - 15,017
Loans, net 279066 - - 279,066
Investment i subsidiary, at cost, phus

equity in net income - 0,356 (50,356) -
Accrued interest receivable 1448 - - 1448
Premises and equipment, net 0288 - - 628
Right of use asset operating leases 2337 - 2357
Right of use asset financmg leases 3013 - 3013
Other real estate owned 2927 - - 2927
(Mher assels 1312 - 1,312

405252 8 5069 5 (50694) § 405252
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Bank of Idaho
Bank of Idaho Holding Company Eliminations  Consolidated

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'

EQUITY
DEPOSITS
Noninterest-bearing, demand S 141267 8 - § (338) §% 140929
Interest-bearing
NOW demand 86,651 - - 86,651
Savings 75,849 - - 75,849
Money market 18,026 - - 18.026
Time certificates of deposit 13914 - - 12914
Total deposits 335,707 - (338) 335,369
Accrued mterest payable 18 . - 18
Accounts payablk and accrued hiabilitics 2477 (5 - 2472
Operating lease liabilities 2,355 - - 2355
Stock appreciation rights 221 - - 221
FHLB advances and other borrowings 11,040 - - 11,040
Fmance lease borrowings 3,078 . - 3078
Total habilities 354,896 (5) (338) 354,553

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common stock 28,836 26,689 (28.836) 26,689
Retained earnings 20953 23443 (20,953) 23443
Accumulated other comprehensive income 567 567 (567) 367

Total stockholders' equity 50.356 50,699 (50,356) 50,659

S 405252 § 0694 5 (50694) 5 405252




BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2018

Bank of Idaho

{(in thousands) Bank of Idaho  Holding Company Fliminations Consoldated
ASSETS
Cash 5 7322 5 50 b 30 8 7322
Interest bearing deposits in banks 17,586 = 5 17,586
Cerntificates of deposit 289 - - 289
Securities available for sale, at fir value 88615 - - Ra.615
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost 386 - - 386
Mortgage Toans held for sale 3,780 - - 3,780
Loans, net 205,226 = = 205,226
Investment in subsidiary, at cost, plus
equity in net income = 33,741 (33,741) =
Accrued interest receivable 1,547 - - 1.547
Premises and equipment, net 5,610 - - 5610
Other real estate owned 3,140 - - 3,140
(therassels 445 - - 445
5 333946 b 33.791 ) (33.791) 3% 333.946
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY
DEPOSITS
Noninterest-bearing, demand % 112941 '8 5 (s S 112,891
Interest-bearing
NOW demand 53,454 - 83,454
Savings 71,669 - 71,669
Money narket 13,889 - 13,889
Time certificates of deposit 15,056 - 15,096
Total deposits 297049 (500 206,999
Accrued interest payable 14 - 14
Accounts payable and accrued liabilitics 2922 - 2922
Stock appreciation rights 220 - 220
Total liabilities 300,205 (50} 300,155
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock 14,829 12,505 (14.529) 12,505
Retained eamings 19,800 22,174 (19, 80:0) 22,174
Accumulated other comprehensive {loss) (585} (B88) b (R8H)
Total stockholders' equity 33,741 33,791 (33,741) 33,791
5 333846 8 3,791 S (33791 S 333,946
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BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Bank of Idaho
Holding
{in thousands) Bank of Idaho Company Elimmnations Consolidated
INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME
Loans, including fees s 14684 § - 5 - 8 14,684
Securnties available for sale 2,283 - - 2243
Interest on interest bearing deposits and CDs 464 - - 464
Total interest and dividend income 17431 - - 17431
INTEREST EXPENSE
NOW demand and savings 178 - - 178
Money market 20 - - 20
Time certificates of deposit 69 - -
Federal Home Loan Bank advances and
other bomowings 75 - - 73
Total interest expense 342 - - 342
NET INTEREST INCOME 17.089 - - 17,089
Provision for loan losses 74 - - 774
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION
FOR LOAN LOSSES 16,315 - - 16,315
NONINTEREST INCOME
Service charges on deposit accounts 572 - - 572
Gain on sale of morigage loans held
for sale 3142 - - 3,142
Merchant card income 26 - . 26
Trust fee income 1,389 - - 1,389
Equity in net income of subsidiary - 2825 (2.825) -
Gain on sale of securitics 160 - - 160
Cain on sale of other real estate owned 9 - - 9
Ciher 6 - - 66
Total noninterest income 5,364 2825 (2.825) 5,364
NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries, wages and benefits 12,177 62 - 12239
Net occupancy expense 2,101 - - 2,101
Advertising and business development 1,031 - - 1,031
Accounting and consulling 354 - - 354
Data processing 1414 - - 1414
legal 22 an - 252
Telephone, postage and courer 244 - - 244
Other real estate owned expenses 38 - - 38
Office supplies 150 - - 150
FDIC imsurance 48 - - 48
General and administrative 1,483 59 - 1.542
Total noninterest expense 19,282 151 - 159,433
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 2397 2,674 (2.825) 2246
Income tax expense (benefit) (428) (40) - (468)
NET TNCOME 2825 8§ 2714 8 (2,825} § 2,714
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CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Bank of ldaho
Holding
(i thousands) Bank of Idaho Company Eliminations _Consolidated
INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME
Loans, including fees 5 12,567 % - % - § 12,567
Securities available for sale 2095 - - 285
Interest on interest beanng deposits and CDs 22 - - 322
Total mterest and dividend meome 14,984 - - 14,984
INTEREST EXPENSE
NOW demand and savings 172 - - 172
Money market 14 - - 14
Time certificates of deposit 52 - - 52
Total meresi expense 238 - - 238
NET INTEREST INCOME 14,746 - - 14,746
Provision for loan losses 425 - - 825
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION
FOR LOAN LOSSES 13,821 - - 13,821
NONINTEREST INCOME
Service charges on deposit accounts 584 - - 584
Gain on sale of mortgage loans held
for sale 2261 - - 2261
Merchant card income 22 - - 22
Trust fee income 1.312 - - 1,312
Equity in net income of subsidiary - 3,697 (3,697) -
Cain on sale of secunities 25 - - 25
Other 69 - - 69
Total noninterest income 4273 3,697 {3.697) 4273
NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries, wages and benefits 9454 ] - 0473
Nel occupancy cxpense 1,623 - - 1,623
Advenising and business development 585 - - 585
Accounting and consulting 35 - - 351
Duta processing RO - - B
Legal 145 s - 150
Telephone, postage and courier 207 - - 207
Other real estate owned expenscs 30 - - 39
Loss and provision for loss on sale of ORE 27 - - 27
Office supplies 99 - - 99
FIC Insurance 99 - - 99
CGeneral and administrative B2 I - "73
Total noninterest expense 14,397 25 - 14422
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 3697 8 3672 § (3.687) % 3672
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BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Bank of ldaho
Holding
(m thousands) Bank of Idaho Company Eliminations Consolidated
Net Income 5 2825 % 2714 % (2.825) § 2714
Unrealsed gams (losses) on seeuritics
Unrealized holding gains arsing during period,
net of tax 1.615 - - 1615
Less: reclassification adjustment for gams
included in net income, net of tax (160) - = (160)
Other Comprehensive Income 1,455 - - 1,455
Comprehensive Income ) 4,280 8 2714 8 (2.82%) 8§ 4,169

53



BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Bank of Idaho
Holding

(in thousands) Bank of Idaho Company Eliminations  Consolidated
Net Income 5 3697 8§ 3672 § (3697 8 3672
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities
Unrealized holding (losses) ansing during period {694) {E94)
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains
inclided in net mncome (25) - (25)
Other Comprehensive (Loss) (719} - (719}
Comprehensive Income < 2918 % 3672 § (3,697 % 2053
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BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Bank of ldaho
Holding
{in thousands) Bank of Idaho Company Elmnations  Consolidated
COMPONENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Common Stock, Beginning b 14,829 % 12505 § (14829 § 12,503
Issuance of common stock - 14,177 - 14,177
Eguily compensation expense 7 7 (N T
Investment in Sub 14.000 = {14,000 =

Common Stock, Ending 28830 26,689 (28.836) 26,689

Retained Eamings, Beginning 19,799 22173 (19,799} 22,173
Net Income 2,825 2714 (2,825} 2714
Cash disinbutions paid on common stock - (1.333) - {1.333)
Cash dividends (1,560) - 1,560 -
S-Corp to C-Corp AOCI tax adjustment {234) (234) 234 (234)

123 123 (123) 123

Retained Eamings, Ending 20,953 23,443 (20,953} 23,443

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss ), Beginning (BER) (BRER) ERE (BER)
MNet changes in unrealized gam (loss) on securities

available for sale, net of tax 1455 1,455 (1,455) 1,455

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Ending 567 567 {(567) 567

Total equity 3 50356 S S069 8§ (50356) 8 50,699
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BANK OF IDAHO HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Bank of Idaho
Holding
{in thousands) Bank of Idaho Company  Elminations  Consolidated
COMPONENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Common Stock, Beginning 5 14829 § 12505 §  (14829) 3§ 12,505
lssuance of common stock - - - -
Equity compensation expense - - -
Investment in Sub - - - -
Common Stock, Ending 14,529 12,505 (14.829) 12,505
Retained Eamings, Beginning 17,663 20,011 (17,663) 20,011
Net Income 3,697 3,673 (3,697) 3,673
Cash distnbutions paid on common stock - (13100 - (1.510
Cash dividends (1.560) - 1,560 -
Retained Eamings, Ending 15,800 22,174 (198000 22174
Accurmmlated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Beginning
Net changes in unrealized gain (loss ) on securities (1690 (169) 169 (169)
available for sale
Acceuwmulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Ending {719) (7149) 719 (719)
Accurmulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Ending {888} {888) 888 (RES)
Total equity b] 33741 8 33791 8 (33741 % 33,791
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Park Price - Jeff Newgard

Board Chairman/Director g k- President/Director
“\__ Bank of Idaho Holding Co.

John Spicer Mario Hernandez Steven E. Carr,
Governance Committee Chair Trust Committee Chair Executive Loan Committee Chair

Denise L. Stephens Kenlon P. Johnson Chris Reinke
Personnel Committee Chair Audit Committee Chair

David Volk Doug Oppenheimer
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Bank of ildaho
Locations
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Ashton

600 Main Street
Ashton, ID 83420
208.652.3599

Boise - Downtown

999 West Main Street, Suite 101
Boise, ID 83702

208.433.4200

Boise - Overland
6981 West Overland Road
Boise, ID 83709
208.363.8080

Idaho Falls - Corporate Offices
350 Memorial Drive, Suite 200

Idaho Falls, ID 83402

208.524.5500

Idaho Falls

Trust & Wealth Management
350 Memorial Drive, Suite 200

Idaho Falls, ID 83402

208.524.5500

Idaho Falls - Capital
399 N. Capital Avenue
Idaho Falls, ID 83402
208.524.5500

Idaho Falls - Channing
1800 Channing Way

Idaho Falls, ID 83402
208.524.5500

Idaho Falls - Mortgage
1655 Elk Creek Drive, Suite 200
Idaho Falls, ID 83404
208.528.9999

Island Park
3976 US Highway 20
Island Park, ID 83429
208.558.0226

Nampa Loan Production Office
101 11th Avenue South, Suite 215

Nampa, ID 83651

208.901.0728

Pocatello - Yellowstone
1230 Yellowstone Avenue
Pocatello, ID 83201
208.232.1700

Pocatello - Tuscany
2300 Via Caporatti Drive
Pocatello, ID 83201
208.232.1700

Pocatello - Mortgage
124 N 7th Avenue

Pocatello, ID 83201
208.239.7748

St. Anthony

135 North Bridge Street
St. Anthony, ID 83445
208.624.4900

Twin Falls - Mortgage
1411 Falls Ave E

Suite 115 Twin Falls, ID 83303
208.733.8800
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